
 
 

Knox County Board  
Member Packet 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

February 27, 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This packet contains the meeting’s agenda, accompanying 
documentation, and minutes of recent standing committee meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compiled by Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk 



KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN  JANE SMITH 

KASI TERPENING    MELANIE RICE 

NICOLE BYERLY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD ON FEBRUARY 27, 2018 

 
 

In accordance with action taken at its January 24, 2018, regular 

meeting, the Knox County Board ordered that members of the Knox County 

Board will hereby meet in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on February 27, 

2018, at the Galesburg City Hall, 55 West Tompkins Street, City Council 

Chambers, Galesburg, Illinois. 

Along with this notice is the agenda of matters to be discussed at said 

meeting.  The agenda can also be accessed through our web site at 

www.KnoxClerk.org. 

 

DATED: February 23, 2018            ______________________ 
                    Scott G. Erickson 

Knox County Clerk and 
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board 

 

 
Attention 

There will be a closed session of the Knox 
County Board starting at 5:00PM to discuss 
pending litigation, collective bargaining, and 

personnel. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 1 

 

Knox County Board 
 

Regular Monthly Meeting – February 2018 
Galesburg City Hall, Galesburg, Illinois 

Council Chambers, 1st Floor 
February 27, 2018 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Special Events 

5:00 p.m. Presentation Closed Session for Pending Litigation, Collective 
Bargaining, and Personnel. 

   
Opening Ceremonies 
6:00 p.m.  Call to Order (Chairman) 
   

  Roll Call (Clerk) 
   

  Declaration of Quorum (Chairman) 
   

  Proclamation (Sheriff) 
   

  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America (Chairman) 

   

  Moment of Silence (In Memory of Former County Board 
member George Knapp) 

   

  Additions to the Agenda (for discussion only) 
 
Public Comment 
 
Consent Agenda (R/C) 
Item 1 Approve Minutes of the Regular and Closed Board Meetings on 

January 24, 2018. 
Item 2 Approve Claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the 

Meetings of February 2018 and other claims for per diem 
from Meetings. 

Item 3 Presentation Sales tax and various taxes for month of November 2017 
in the amounts of $112,653.60 and $26,018.07 and public 
safety tax in the amount of $187,517.06. 

   
Items for the Chairman 
Item 4 Presentation Presentation of Appreciation Certificate from Ameren 
Item 5 Approve R/C Approve Annual Report from Health Department. 
Item 6 Approve R/C Appointments to Elba-Salem Fire Protection District 

Trustees of Gerald R. Buckman and Joey K. Tusek. 
Item 7 Approve R/C Salary Adjustment from 2016 for Nursing Home 

Administrator. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 2 

Item 8 Approve R/C Resolution to Approve Appointment of Special Prosecutor 
and to Ratify and Pursue Litigation. 

   
Report – Committee on Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk 
Item 9 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 10 Approve R/C Approve Animal Kill Claims for 2017 
Item 11 Approve R/C Approve Resolution on Deeds of Conveyance. 
Item 12 Approve R/C Approve Western Illinois Regional Council Invoice for 

Transporting and Processing Residential Paint and 
Electronics for Recycling and/or Disposal. 

Item 13 Approve R/C Approve Membership Dues for Prairie Hills. 
Item 14 Approve R/C Approve Purchase of Replacement IPads for County Board 
Item 15 Approve R/C Bid and Bring Back for IT Storage Server. 
Item 16 Approve R/C Approval of Bid Documents for Compensation Analysis and 

Study. 
   
Report – Building Committee (Courthouse and Annex)             
Item 17 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 18 Approve R/C Approve Payment to Otto Baum for $33,506.80 for 

Courthouse Exterior Project. 
Item 19 Approve R/C Approve Payment to Hein Construction for $1,260.00 for 

Courthouse Back Stairwell Project. 
Item 20 Approve R/C Approve Payment to Klingner and Associates for $500 for 

Courthouse Exterior Improvements. 
Item 21 Approve R/C Ratify Payment to Mechanical Services Inc for $40,991.49 

for Emergency Heating in Courthouse. 
   
   
Report  – Committee on Sheriff, Jail, Mary Davis Home, Animal Control, and Nursing 
Home. 
Item 22 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 23 Approve R/C Bid and Bring Back for Replacement Wireless Networking 

and Switching at the Nursing Home. 
Item 24 Approve R/C Approve Purchase of IT Racks for Equipment Relocation 

and Security for $1,200. 
   
Report – Committee on Assessor, Zoning, GIS, Recorder, Highway, and Landfill 
Item 25 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 26 Approve R/C Resolution to Opt In to Consumer Electronics Recycling 

Act. 
   
Reports – External Committees Assigned to Board Members 
Item 27 Presentation Knox County Board of Health (Amor) 
Item 28 Presentation Galesburg Convention and Visitors Bureau (Varner) 
Item 29 Presentation 9-1-1 Committee (Hawkinson) 
Item 30 Presentation Knox County Area Partnership for Economic Development 
Item 31 Presentation Prairie Hills Resources Board (Johnson) 
Item 32 Presentation United Council of Counties (Johnson) 
Item 33 Presentation Ad Hoc Committee for Technology Services (Bondi) 
Item 34 Presentation Knox County Mental Health 708 Board (Conklin) 
   
   



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 3 

Claims Against the County – R/C 
Item 35 Approve R/C Approve Opening of Budget for Line Item Changes. (If 

Necessary) 
Item 36 Presentation Presentation of the Proposed Budget Line Item Changes 
Item 37 Approve R/C Approval of Proposed Line Item Changes. (If Necessary) 
Item 38 Approve R/C Claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of       

January 25, 2018 through February 27, 2018 (ordering that 
invoices be accepted and approved and that the County 
Clerk and County Treasurer be authorized and directed to 
issue County Warrants in payment of the bills) 

   
Statements of General Concern 
Item 39 Presentation Statements of General Concern from Board Members 

(Conducted in voting rank order.  No Debate) 
   
Announcements 
Item 40 Presentation The next regular meeting will be held on Wenesday, 

March 28, 2018, 6:00 p.m., at the Galesburg City Hall 
Council Chambers, Galesburg, IL 

   
Closing Ceremonies 
Item 41 Presentation Adjournment of meeting until next scheduled meeting of 

the Board. 
   
 
* CONSENT AGENDA:  All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Member or citizen so requests; in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will 
be considered separately. 
 
** Action item to be used only if previous Motion to Remove from Table is approved. 
 
VOTING CHART:  R/C = Roll Call Vote; Voice = Voice Vote; 2/3 = 2/3rds Vote 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Except for emergency personnel, please turn off all cellular telephones and paging 
devices during the meeting. 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
January 24, 2018 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF KNOX  ) 

 
 Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of the Knox County Board held at the Galesburg 
City Hall, Galesburg, Illinois on Wednesday, January 24, 2018 at 6:22 p.m. 
 
 The Meeting was called to order by County Board Chairwoman Pamela Davidson and 
upon roll call the following Members reported present: 
 

District 1 Lyle Johnson  
District 2 John Hunigan 
District 3 Tara Wilder 
District 4 Jared Hawkinson 
District 5 Ricardo “Rick” Sandoval 
District 1 Cheryl Nache 

    District 2 David Amor 
District 3 Pamela Davidson 
District 4 David Erickson 
District 5 Brian Friedrich 
District 1 Richard Conklin 
District 2 Robert Bondi 

    District 4 Sara Varner 
 
And those absent:   District 3 Trisha Hurst 

District 5 Todd Shreves 
 

Also present were County Treasurer Robin Davis, Sheriff David Clague and County 
Clerk Scott Erickson. 
  
 Sheriff David Clague delivered the proclamation. Chairwoman Pamela Davidson led the 
Members in the pledge to the flag. In lieu of a formal invocation a moment of silence was 
observed. 
 
 Chairman Davidson asked for public comments. She asked that those who address the 
Board state their names and refrain from using personal names in their comments.  
 

Crissy Lynch, who works in the Knox County Assessment Office, addressed the Board in 
reference to the time clock policy. Not only are some offices in the Annex not using the time 
clock to verify their hours but that is also true of some offices in the Courthouse. She is sure that 
a lot of time and money was spent on research and the actual purchase of the time clock system 



2 
 

in order to verify the hours that employees are working. This is a check and balances system for 
the taxpayers of Knox County. She is not sure why this is not a mandatory requirement for all 
Knox County employees after all they are public servants of the taxpayers of Knox County. It is 
good to be able to verify when employees are coming and going. This is a way to show taxpayers 
where their tax dollars are going. All County employees should be required to use the time clock, 
regardless of whether they are hourly or salaried, union or non-union, appointed or elected. 
Every employee should be required to use the time clock. This system proves that employees are 
on the job and earning their benefits, including sick time, personal time, vacation time, etc. 
Taking long lunches, leaving early or coming in late and still accumulating benefits is a way of 
cheating and stealing from the taxpayers of the County. That is fraud. It is not fair to the 
taxpayers and it is unacceptable to those employees who are doing what the County Board had 
asked them to do in using the time clock.  

 
Crissy Lynch stated that Tracey Bailey, an employee of the Treasurer’s Office, could not 

attend this Meeting. However she had prepared a written statement and asked Ms. Lynch to read 
it to the Board. She asked the Board’s permission to do so. 
 The Board did give their permission to read this prepared statement. Mrs. Bailey reported 
that she had worked in the Knox County Treasurer’s Office for the last 25 years. She wanted to 
address the Board and share her concerns that offices closed early and allowed their employees 
to go home early November 22nd, 2017, the day before Thanksgiving. These offices still allowed 
their employees to receive a full day’s wages without using benefit time. Board Members should 
have received a letter about this subject. These offices include the State’s Attorney’s Office, the 
Public Defender’s Office, the Judges’ Chambers and the Veterans’ Assistance Office. A 
Freedom of Information request was filed for the payroll records that included November 22nd. 
This shows that benefit time was not used by all employees who worked that day and were 
allowed to go home early. 

According to the union contracts, in order for employees to receive holiday pay, they 
must work the day before and the day after the holiday, unless benefit time is taken such as 
approved vacation time, sick time, bereavement time, or comp time. The State’s Attorney’s 
Office and the Public Defender’s Office are not following the union contracts by paying their 
employees for November 22nd, 23rd, and 24th. These include the holidays but employees should 
not have been paid for them since they did not work their regular scheduled day on November 
22nd.  

The union contracts specify the established hours for all employees are from 8:30 a.m. to 
4:30 p.m., Monday- Friday. There is to be a one hour unpaid lunch period to be scheduled at the 
discretion of the department head. According to the payroll records, the Public Defender’s Office 
is not following the union contract by allowing their employees to either work from 8:00 a.m. – 4 
p.m. or 9:00 a.m. – 5:p.m and allowing them to work through their lunch periods. The Illinois 
Labor Law requires at least a 20 minute meal break after 5 hours of work.  

The County Board established a committee to sit down and negotiate these contracts and 
they voted to approve such contracts. The County is listed as a co-employer. So why are the 
contracts not being followed by all of the offices that are included in these contracts? She is also 
aware that not all County offices are following the County time clock policy. But she was not 
aware that these offices are paying their employees for time not worked and without using 
benefit time. This is wrong and unfair to other County employees that do abide by the time clock 
policy. It is wrong to pay employees for time not worked and this matter needs to be addressed. 



3 
 

Falsifying payroll records is unethical and demonstrates the reason why every employee should 
be using the time clock system. 

Some have stated that punching a time clock is unprofessional. Punching a time clock is 
being held accountable and provides accurate hours for employees that are paid by the taxpayers 
of Knox County. She is asking the Board to look at the payroll information for the period of 
November 13-November 24 and have the employees of the previously named offices submit 
corrected payroll information that reflects the actual hours that were worked and benefit time 
used for all of these employees. If they were using the time clock this would not have happened 
and actual hours worked would have been electronically reported. The Board needs to make sure 
that these union contracts are being followed.  
 
 Melanie Rice-Weik, an employee from the County Clerk’s Office, also addressed the 
Board regarding the time clock policy. She would like to see all County employees using the 
time clock as all of these employees work for the taxpayers. Courthouse offices need to be 
available during normal business hours. Some people take time off work to come into the 
Courthouse to take care of their business. There have been people who would come into the 
County Clerk’s Office to complain that the offices upstairs were closed and that there was no one 
available upstairs in those offices to assist them. She thinks that is unfair for the County Clerk’s 
Office to tell these people that they do not know why those offices are closed. As a taxpayer that 
is frustrating. The time clock is actually very beneficial to employees showing accountability and 
overall honesty of the hours that they are working. If employees want to take time off they 
should be using benefit hours.  
 
 Chris King, a resident of the County, addressed the Board and encouraged them to vote in 
favor of the proclamation on anti-hate in Knox County. Other area cities have also adopted an 
anti-hate proclamation.  
 
 Jeremy Karlin, a resident of the County and President of the Board of Trustees of Temple 
Sholom of Galesburg, also addressed the Board and encouraged them to vote in favor of the 
proclamation on anti-hate in Knox County. It is the job of everyone to try to grow the population 
of Knox County and try to make this a thriving vibrant place where all are welcome, where all 
will want to reside and remain to raise their families. This should be a place of love, compassion 
and empathy. It is important that government welcomes diversity and inclusion. Fairness should 
be the watchword of what we do in government. It is important to approve this proclamation. As 
a Galesburg City Council member, he stated that soon they would be voting on a very similar 
proclamation.  
 
 Mary Christie, an employee of the County Assessment Office, also addressed the Board 
to say that some union members are not following the union contract in regards to article # 13 
which deals with holidays. The union contract states that to be eligible for holiday pay an 
employee is required to work the day proceeding and the day following the holiday unless there 
is an approved vacation day, personal day, funeral leave, holiday or sick leave. Before a 
scheduled holiday, some County offices are closed or the employee only works half a day and 
still getting paid for the whole day and the holidays. The hourly employee is not using any 
benefit time. How does the County Board explain this to the taxpayer? Some County employees 
are not using the time clock system that the County Board passed and which was to become 



4 
 

effective June 12, 2017. Some County employees refuse to use the time clock. Some department 
heads are fraudulently entering time for their employees and in reality the County employees did 
not work those hours. Where is the accountability?  

There has been an issue with the Veteran’s Office. On December 29th, 2017, that office 
had a sign posted on their door that the office was currently closed for training and the holiday. 
She filed a Freedom of Information Request on January 8, 2018 requesting registration forms 
from them for training purposes for two of their employees. She is still waiting for the 
information that she requested so she filed a second request. She has still not received an answer 
after eleven business days. The County seems to overlook when some employees do not work 
the day before and the day after a holiday. Some employees are not following the rules. 
Shouldn’t every employee follow the rules as described in the “Employee Handbook”? She is in 
hopes that the County can get this issue resolved and make it fair for all employees.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Amor and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve the 
following items of the consent agenda: 1) minutes of the Regular and Closed Board Meeting on 
December 26, 2017, 2) claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the meetings of January 
2018 and other claims for per diem from meetings, and 3) sales tax and various taxes for the 
month of October 2017 in the amounts of $115,653.52 and $53,752.89 and public safety tax in 
the amount of $192,215.66. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, 
Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, 
and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Amor to approve the 
Proclamation on Anti-Hate in Knox County. Chairwoman Davidson asked County Clerk Scott 
Erickson to read aloud this Proclamation. She also asked everyone in attendance to stand in 
support. A copy of this proclamation is included in the packets.  

Member Conklin commented that this is like voting against Mom, and apple pie; it is 
hard to disagree with it. However, this seems like a lot of fluff and he does not know what this 
proclamation really achieves. He will vote to approve it but it seems unnecessary.  

Member Hunigan commented that the point of this is affirmation. This states that these 
are the types of values that this community upholds and supports. He thinks that this is a very 
important document which states vocally and on the record that this community supports these 
values. 

Member Amor added that there are various organizations that have co-sponsored this 
proclamation including the City of Galesburg Community Relations Commission, the School 
Superintendent of Galesburg Community District Schools #205, the NAACP chapter of 
Galesburg, the Hispanic Latino Resources Group, the Support Group for African Americans, 
Temple Sholom, various other organizations, various churches in the community, other 
prominent residents in the community and others. In this environment acts of hate and violence 
are not so far away. He remembered that it was not so long ago when people came to this area to 
try to disrupt military funerals. It is important to go on record and publicly state that acts of hate 
are not the values of Knox County.  

Chairwoman Davidson commented that she understands why some would consider this 
proclamation to be “fluff”, but it will not be “fluff” if it starts with her. If she can make a change 
and say “no hate” in her home, and in her community, then it will be one person closer to making 
this a community that demonstrates respect to people of all kinds. 



5 
 

Member Nache spoke of her family that does not tolerate hate of anyone.  
Roll call vote to approve the Proclamation on Anti-Hate in Knox County is recorded as 

follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, 
Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Friedrich and seconded by Member Bondi to approve the 
appointment of David Amor to serve on the Western Illinois Regional Council Board. 
Information is included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, 
Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, 
and Varner—(12). Noes—(0). Pass—Amor—(1). Motion carried. 
 

Member Friedrich presented the monthly report from the Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, 
Judicial and Clerk Committee. The monthly report is in the packet. They discussed getting a bid 
document written up for the compensation analysis study for labor. The committee decided that 
they are in over their pay grade with this project. This would involve a great deal of time and 
they were not sure that they could do it justice. This is too much for the committee to handle. 
They did discuss various options. County Clerk Scott Erickson has prepared a sample bid 
document for the Board to consider during the next month. Then it will be brought back to the 
Board for final approval.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Friedrich and seconded by Member Hawkinson to approve 
the resolution on deeds of conveyance for the following three PIN numbers: 04-14-300-021, 17-
04-176-003, and 99-10-301-002. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, 
Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, 
and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Friedrich and seconded by Member Amor to approve the 
resolution to abate the levy for General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and 
Series 2010B for Tax Year 2017 (Build America Bonds and Recovery Zone Bonds.) Member 
Friedrich commented that this is something that is done every year. Information is included in 
the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, 
Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Friedrich and seconded by Member Wilder to approve the 
resolution to abate the levy for Public Safety Bonds Series 2003 for Tax Year 2017. Member 
Friedrich added that this is the final year for these Public Safety Bonds that were issued for the 
jail. This is something that they do every year. Information is included in the packets. Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, 
Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 
 
 Member Friedrich introduced discussion of bid documents for compensation labor 
analysis and study. He asked Members to examine the sample bid packet and feel free to make 
suggestions. This will be discussed during the next Finance Committee Meeting. 
 



6 
 

 Motion was made by Member Friedrich and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve 
to bid and bring back for labor legal services. Member Friedrich explained that this is not 
because they have a problem with the current labor attorney but rather to see if they can get a 
better bid for the County. This has not been bid out for several years and they want to make sure 
that they are getting the best value for the County. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, 
Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 

Member Johnson presented the monthly Building, Courthouse and Annex Committee 
Report. The monthly report is in the packets. The minutes were provided to the Members. 

 
Motion was made by Member Johnson and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve 

payment to Otto Baum for $3,079.08 for the Courthouse Exterior Project. Information is 
included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, 
Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and 
Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Johnson and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve 

payment to Hein Construction for $4,530.00 for the Public Defender’s Office wall project. A 
copy of the invoice is included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, 
Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Member Bondi presented the monthly Sheriff, Jail, Mary Davis Home, Animal Control, 

and Nursing Home Committee report. The monthly report is included in the packets.  
 
Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Hawkinson to approve 

security lock upgrades at the Mary Davis Home. Information is included in the packets. Member 
Bondi reported that this has been something that has been a concern for a few years. The original 
bid that they received was $1,480 per lock. Since this year they plan to replace 12 locks of the 
total 36 locks, the cost was reduced to $1,387 per lock. The lock company is Sentry Security. 
The plan is to order two locks as a trial basic before they order the rest. 

Member Friedrich added that this has been discussed for a long time and it is something 
that needs to be done. Chairwoman Davidson commented that local maintenance staff can install 
these locks so that will save the County some money.  

Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, 
Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Johnson to approve the 

installation of a security camera system on the Courthouse exterior for $26,330.00. Information 
is included in the packets. Member Bondi commented that this has been discussed on numerous 
occasions. Especially for Courthouse employees who are around the Courthouse in the evening, 
this is a life safety issue. This system will include not only security cameras but also a DVR 
system to retain that information for a period of time. The price for the exterior cameras is 



7 
 

$15,435. The cost of additional exterior cameras for the exterior of the Courthouse is $5,875. 
The cost of the DVR system is $5,020. The total cost is $26,330. 

Member Conklin questioned if this was bid out or are there only a limited number of 
companies that provide this service. 

Member Bondi responded that the Sheriff has talked about doing this for quite a while.  
Sheriff David Clague added that this is the same company that has done some of the work 

at the Courthouse but primarily over at the jail and the jail’s parking lot. They do an outstanding 
job. They are familiar with the system at the Courthouse.  

Member Bondi commented that in his experience with the committee, this is the best 
price quote that he has heard.  

Member Hunigan questioned whether this system is an additional system or an upgrade.  
Member Bondi responded that there is nothing on the Courthouse exterior at this point in 

time. There are interior cameras. 
Chairwoman Davidson commented that a few months ago someone threw a rock through 

a window in the County Treasurer’s Office.  
Member Varner stated that while working at the Courthouse someone hit her car in the 

Courthouse parking lot in a hit and run situation. This would also be a good thing to have for 
some people as they go to court. Having this system will increase the safety of the Courthouse 
employees. 

Member Nache stated that she had discussed this with Sheriff Clague several times. 
Sometimes people work late and it would be good to have a camera recording.  

Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, 
Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 

resolution authorizing the transfer of funds from the Knox County Nursing Home Tax Levy 
Account to the Knox County Nursing Home General Account. A copy of this resolution is 
included in the packets. Member Bondi added that this is to make up the shortfall from Medicaid 
and Medicare funds. The reimbursement from the State of Illinois has not been coming on a 
timely basis. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, 
Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and 
Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Amor to approve a 

memorandum of understanding with AFSCME Local # 1407 at the Nursing Home. Member 
Bondi explained that this document clears up some housekeeping items that failed to get 
documented. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, 
Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and 
Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 

 
Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Amor to approve the 

increase of 3% in the rate for private pay rooms at the Nursing Home. Member Bondi stated that 
it had been a period of time since any changes were made in the fee schedule. Information is 
included in the packets. Even with the rate increase, the Nursing Home is competitive with other 
nursing homes in the area. Information is included in the packets. 



8 
 

Roll call vote to approve the increase of 3% in the rate for private pay rooms at the 
Nursing Home is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, 
Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). 
Motion carried. 
 
 Member Hunigan presented the monthly Assessor, Zoning, GIS, Recorder’s Office, 
Highway Department and Landfill Committee report. The Assessment Office has been busy this 
past month. The Board of Review entered 144 cases but only had 38 actual hearings. They are 
working to prepare the final abstract for the Department of Revenue. Once all the steps have 
been completed they will roll the appropriate documentation to the County Clerk’s Office for tax 
year 2017. Since Christmas Eve the Highway Department has had trucks plowing on twelve days 
and has applied 500-600 tons of rock salt. The committee report and the minutes are included in 
the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve 
the appointment of Harry Flesner to the Zoning Board of Appeals. The recommendation and his 
information are included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, 
Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, 
Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Wilder to approve the 
decision on Zoning Board of Appeals Case # CU-01-18—Request for Conditional Use Permit to 
operate a light industrial metal machining business in the “A” Agriculture Zoning District, filed 
by Russell & Charlotte Holt. Information is included in the packets. The ZBA voted to approve 
this request. Member Hunigan added that the Holts have been operating a small business on this 
property. They have no intent on soliciting or expanding their business.  

Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, 
Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Wilder to approve the 
quote for the installation of an air piping system from J. P. Benbow Plumbing and Heating in the 
amount of $5,662.00 for the Landfill Office. This is the low bid. Roll call vote is recorded as 
follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, 
Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve 
the bid for grass mowing/baling at the Stegall Landfill submitted by Trent and Donald 
Trowbridge. Member Hunigan added that they will be mowing eighty acres of grass at $60 per 
acre. This was the highest bid in the amount of $4,800.00. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: 
Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, 
Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Varner to approve the 
bid for County Highway12 culvert replacement; Section 12-00160-00-BR. Information is 
included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, 



9 
 

Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and 
Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Hunigan and seconded by Member Varner to approve the 
engineering agreement for County Highway 4 bridge replacement, Section 07-00017-01-BR. 
Highway Engineer Duane Ratermann stated that this is 100% local funding and involves only 
engineering services provided by Hutchison Engineering not to exceed $122,500. Roll call vote 
is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, 
Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Member Amor presented the monthly report from the Knox County Board of Health. He 
stated that the meeting scheduled for January 11th, was cancelled due to the weather. Most of that 
business was postponed until the next meeting. There was special meeting called for the purpose 
of confirming the contract of the director, Michele Gabriel, for another three years.  
 
 Member Varner presented the monthly report from the Galesburg Convention and 
Visitors Bureau. She reported that the meeting had been rescheduled to January 30th. Michelle 
Kim is the new Galesburg Tourism Director. Chairwoman Davidson stated that they are already 
doing things with the NAACP for Black History Month in February.  
 
 Member Hawkinson presented the monthly report from the 9-1-1 committee. He reported 
that there was no January meeting. This next meeting will be held February 8th.  
 
 Ken Springer presented the monthly report from the Knox County Area Partnership for 
Economic Development. The first starting business workshop of the year is scheduled for March 
21st, at 6:00 p.m. at their offices. This is a free event which is tailored to individuals who want to 
start new businesses. During this coming year additional workshops will be held. They are 
investigating other locations around the County that could host these workshops.  
 He stated that recently he met with Mark Peterson who is the new CEO of Intersect 
Illinois, which is the new State level economic development agency that was created a couple 
years ago. He is very excited to see what this new agency is doing in Illinois. This is a new 
approach that prioritizes marketing and communicating to the national audience. This agency 
was designed to be the marketing arm for the State. They are just getting started so it is too early 
to judge. This is a positive development.  
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from Prairie Hills Resources Board. He 
reported that there was a meeting the previous week. They have been working on their budget 
which will soon be adopted. The personnel committee interviewed three people for the 
administrative assistant position, which has been open since July. 
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from the United Council of Counties. He 
reported that there were several meetings January 22nd. One of the topics of discussion was the 
amendment to the counties’ auditing standards. They also had a sexual harassment workshop. He 
had given Members some of the material from this workshop. There are new requirements for 
the counties which have to do with compliance. They are recommending that counties establish a 
compliance commission composed of elected officials and employees to hear charges of sexual 



10 
 

harassment. Several counties have already established their compliance commissions. He would 
recommend that Knox County also do so. They would encourage counties to organize their own 
workshops on sexual harassment to include attendance by elected officials, employees and the 
county boards. The County does have a sexual harassment policy included in the personnel 
handbook. However, by the State’s new guidelines, that needs to be updated. He would like to 
see the County host one of these workshops but he does not know what the cost would be.  
 
 Member Bondi presented the monthly report from the Ad Hoc Committee for 
Technology Services. He reported that they met January 22nd. They reviewed old business which 
included the maintenance agreement for the Courthouse. They are looking at some bids to 
upgrade security at the Courthouse and will soon have information to bring back to the Board. 
They are working on a new wireless system and Instant Messaging at the Nursing Home.  
 The new air handlers which were recently installed in the Courthouse, have venting that 
goes through the IT director, Andy Rowe’s office. This has increased the noise level in that 
office, which has made it a difficult issue to work around. For IT purposes it will be pretty much 
intolerable to work in that office environment. They are exploring other options. Relocating that 
office will not be a simple process and it could take a month or two to figure out what the best 
relocation spot would be. It could mean going off site of a County building. In the world of IT, as 
long as one has access to the internet, you can work from almost anywhere.  
 He reported that they had recently been able to install the payroll software into the time 
clock system.  
 
 Member Conklin presented the monthly report from the Knox County Mental Health 708 
Board. He reported that there was no meeting in January. They will be meeting February 9th at 
the Annex.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 
opening of the budget for line item changes. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, 
Conklin, Bondi, and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Line item changes are requested for the Nursing Home as presented in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Amor and seconded by Member Wilder to approve the 
proposed line item changes. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, 
Wilder, Hawkinson, Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Conklin, Bondi, 
and Varner—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Friedrich to approve 
claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of December 27, 2017 through January 24, 
2018 (ordering that invoices be accepted and approved and that the County Clerk and County 
Treasurer be authorized and directed to issue County Warrants in payment of the bills.) 
 Member Friedrich stated that the committee has some questions about a couple of the 
bills from the Health Department. Those bills have been pulled pending further investigation.  

Roll call vote to approve these claims with the exception of those that were pulled from 
the Health Department is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Hunigan, Wilder, Hawkinson, 



11 
 

Sandoval, Nache, Amor, Davidson, Erickson, Friedrich, Bondi, and Varner—(12). Noes—(0). 
Pass—Conklin—(1). Motion carried. 
 
STATEMENTS OF GENERAL CONCERN 
 
 Member Johnson, Member Hunigan, and Member Wilder had no comments at this time.  
 
 Member Hawkinson commented that in the Board Meeting of June of 2017, Member 
Erickson commented that a lot of personal agenda items from Board Members had come into the 
Board Meeting rather than public items. Earlier in this meeting that were several comments 
about the time clock policy. He personally thinks that the time clock is a good thing as it helps to 
facilitate transparency. It is the taxpayers’ money. He has had residents phone him with their 
concerns that it seems that some employees are trying to hide the hours that they are working. If 
it comes down to a department that is working more than what is being recorded, than their 
budget needs to be adjusted for the next financial year. He also shared his concerns about a lack 
of information that is shared between department heads, Board Members and constituents.  
 
 Member Sandoval expressed his thanks to the City of Galesburg. In his 18 years on the 
Board this is the first time he has been able to see the faces of those in the audience as he hasn’t 
been able to do that is past meetings. He wanted to thank the City of Galesburg.  
 
 Member Nache agreed with Member Sandoval. It is nice to be able to look at the 
audience.  
 
 Member Amor agreed with the advantages of being at the City Hall. People that attend 
these Meetings do not have to look at the backs of their heads. He also expressed his thanks to 
the City of Galesburg. He also agreed with Member Hawkinson on the subject of transparency. 
Also on the behalf of all of the groups that came forward, he thanked the Board for their 
unanimous support of the Anti-Hate Proclamation.  
 
 Member Davidson and Member Erickson had no comments at this time. 
 
 Member Friedrich also expressed his thanks to the City of Galesburg. It is good to see 
everybody and hear their concerns.  
 
 Member Conklin spoke of the time clock issue. He thanked the four individuals who 
spoke about the time clock issue. They did an excellent job to explain why every employee needs 
to use the time clock.  
 
 Member Bondi stated his endorsement of all of those who had addressed the Board about 
the time clock issue. He also thanked the City of Galesburg.  
 
 Member Varner commented that she agreed with the comments made. She also thanked 
Board Members for approving the purchase of the cameras on the Courthouse exterior.  
 



12 
 

The next Regular Meeting will be held on Tuesday, February 27, 2018, 6:00 p.m., at the 
Galesburg City Hall, Council Chambers, Galesburg, Illinois. 

 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Nache to adjourn from 
this Meeting. Voice vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
Meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 
 





2

The Knox County Health Department was created by 
citizen referendum in November 1992. On December 2, 
1992, the Knox County Board of Health held its inaugural 
meeting at Galesburg Cottage Hospital.

Greg Chance was hired as the first Public Health 
Administrator for the Department on April 3, 1993. At 
that time, the Health Department was located at 2320F 
Veterans Drive in Galesburg. The initial focus of the Health 
Department was to establish the four core programs 
required by the State of Illinois—food safety, private 
sewage disposal, potable water, and communicable 
disease surveillance. These programs remain the center of 
public health in Knox County today.

The Board of Health adopted the 1st Community Health 
Improvement Plan on May 26, 1994, successfully becoming 
a certified health department in Illinois. In July, the Health 
Department assumed the administration of the WIC and 
Healthy Moms/Healthy Kids programs for Knox County 
which resulted in a significant increase of both staff and 
revenue for the Department.

With the addition of more programs and staff, the Board 
of Health quickly realized that the Health Department 
would require more space. Subsequently, later that same 
year, the Department moved into a 14,000 square foot 
space located at 519 McClure Street in Galesburg which 
previously had been the location of the OMC factory. 

Over the next several years at this location, the Health 

Department added programs in lead poisoning prevention, 
immunizations, health education, and committed to the 
development of a preventative dental health clinic. It 
expanded programming to also include Breast & Cervical 
Cancer, tobacco cessation, cardiovascular health, vector 
and mosquito surveillance, nurse practitioner services in 
women’s health, maternal and child health services, STD 
testing/reporting, teen pregnancy prevention, accessible 
and affordable health care, TB testing/reporting, and 
dental health services.

In February of 1999, the decision was made to build its 
own facility. A groundbreaking ceremony was held at the 
new building site in August 1999. Additionally, in May of 
that year, the Board of Health adopted its 2nd Community 
Health Improvement Plan which identified priority 
community health issues and outlined specific intervention 
strategies, including the establishment of Chronic Disease 
Prevention and also Teen Pregnancy Prevention Task 
Forces to collaboratively address priority health concerns 
for the residents of Knox County. This Health Improvement 
Plan also identified the lack of affordable and accessible 
health care for the working poor in Knox County and, in 
July 1999, the Knox County Community Health Clinic was 
created utilizing volunteer physicians and nurses to provide 
services. The clinic was sponsored by Galesburg Cottage 
Hospital, Galesburg Clinic P.C., OSF St Mary Medical Center 
and the Health Department; all who remain partners of the 
Knox Community Health Center today.
The Knox County Health Department moved into its new 

A story that starts right 
in your back yard...



3KNOX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

facility at 1361 West Fremont Street in Galesburg on May 15, 
2000. It continued operation of the Knox County Community 
Health Clinic, expanding its services through the addition 
of a Family Nurse Practitioner. Additional programs such 
as Freedom from Smoking classes, radon testing kits, teen 
parent services, reproductive health, cholesterol screening, 
breastfeeding promotion, and Smoke-Free Restaurant 
Recognition were added as grant funds became available. 

In 2002, the Health Department recognized 10 years of 
service to Knox County. It continued to develop additional 
plans in Public Health Emergency Response, Pandemic Flu 
Response, and West Nile Virus Response. The Department 
contracted with the Galesburg Sanitary District to perform 
grease trap inspections at restaurants, worked with Illinois 
EPA to host two used tire collection events, and completed 
a building expansion project to increase available dental 
services. It received State of Illinois funding to provide 
primary health care services through the Knox County 
Community Health Clinic, adopted the 3rd Community Health 
Improvement Plan, held the first-ever Knox County Teen 
Summit, revised County Health Department Ordinances, 
and began Smoke-Free Illinois Enforcement. The Health 
Department celebrated its 15-year anniversary just prior to 
its inaugural Administrator leaving early in 2009.

In September of 2009, the Board of Health hired Heidi 
Britton as the new Public Health Administrator for the Health 
Department. Over the next five years, under the leadership 
of Ms. Britton, the Department successfully implemented 
an H1N1 Influenza Response Plan, began administering the 
Body Art program, celebrated 20 years of service to Knox 
County residents, received three years of federal quality 
improvement program development grant funding, and 
created the Governance Board for the Knox Community 
Health Center. In addition, the Department was awarded 
and implemented the We Choose Health grant officially 

recognizing the Department as a Healthy Workplace, 
branded the Health Department by adopting the national 
public health logo, received Section 330 federal recognition 
as a Community Health Center, and developed a Quality 
Improvement Plan. The Board of Health also adopted its 4th 
Community Health Improvement Plan in 2011.

In December of 2014, the Board of Health hired Michele 
Gabriel as the Public Health Administrator for the Knox 
County Health Department, occurring during year one of 
a two-and-a-half-year period of no State budget. During 
this time, the Health Department worked with state and 
local partners implementing a plan for the largest Ebola 
outbreak since its discovery in 1976. A 5th Community 
Health Improvement Plan for Knox County was adopted, the 
Health Department successfully applied twice and received 
CDC fellows to work at the Department through the Public 
Health Associate Program, expanded the Knox County 
Medical Reserve Corp, and began the application process for 
Public Health Accreditation Board recognition. The Health 
Center expanded its hours to better serve patients, added 
integrated mental health services and additional medical/
dental/mental health providers to increase access to care, 
and transitioned to a new electronic health record, billing 
system, and population platform.

Beginning this past November 2017, the Board of Health 
began a year-long celebration of 25 years of service to the 
Knox County Community, thanking its many partners over 
the years and reaffirming the value of public health as an 
integral component of public safety in Knox County. It is 
still the mission of the Knox County Health Department to 
“Serve Knox County by assessing health and environmental 
needs, developing policies, and assuring those needs are 
effectively addressed” for the next 25 years.

...with the very people 
you live and work with.



KCHD MISSION
To serve Knox County by assessing health and environmental needs,

developing policies, and assuring those needs are effectively addressed.

KCHD VISION
“Healthy people in a healthy community!”

KCHD VALUE STATEMENTS
EXCELLENCE! Make every effort to ensure services are the best they can be.
INTEGRITY! Adhere to set standards to provide consistency and accountability for our actions
CREDIBILITY! Ensure our name is consistent with lawful, ethical and empathetic actions in the community.
DEPENDABILITY! Establish services that are consistently reliable and repeatable.
RESPECTFUL! Treat everyone with dignity and acceptance; recognize everyone has something to offer.

Residents of Knox County

Thank you for taking a moment to look back on 2017 
with me, as well as celebrating the 25th anniversary of 
the successful referendum passed in November 1992 
which formed the Knox County Health Department. 
It has been a pleasure to serve another year as the 
Public Health Administrator for the Knox County 
Health Department.

I have been with the Health Department for nearly 18 
years. In that time, I have interacted with many Knox 
County residents for many reasons; watching the 
priorities of public health change over time. Whether 
due to flu, food-borne illness, teen pregnancy, or 
simply politics. The face of public health may change; 
but, our purpose remains constant. “Public health 
promotes and protects the health of people and the 
communities where they live, learn, work and play.” 
So in recognition of the Health Department’s 25th 
anniversary, I would like to share what I believe public 
health is for Knox County, Illinois.

Public health is about prevention, promotion, and 
protection efforts provided through programs 
and activities, or policy and legislation. The Health 
Department is part of the public safety system that 
protects Knox County and its residents from harm 
and provides an environment where you can live your 
best life. Our responsibility as public health, is to do 
our work in such a way that we prevent bad things 
from ever happening. In fact, if we are successful, 
you will not need us, and you may even forget that 
we are here.

But, we are here. And we work every day to take 
steps to provide a healthy environment for you and 

your family. Health Protection staff, for example, 
inspect and educate restaurants as part of our core 
services, in order to ensure use of best-practices & 
discourage the occurrence or spread of food-borne 
illness. If a food-borne outbreak did occur, Health 
Department staff would investigate to limit the 
spread of the illness, ensure treatment for anyone 
who could have been exposed, discover what 
caused the outbreak, and educate everyone involved 
to protect the community from future occurrences. 
But, in an ideal scenario, the food-borne illness would 
be avoided through the everyday practices of the 
Health Department, and the community would never 
experience the occurrence of an outbreak; and, as a 
result, may never truly understand why we do what 
we do. But that is why we are here.

Similarly, many members of the community we serve 
may have a limited perspective of what the Health 
Department does. Some believe we are only here 
to provide human services to poor people, just to 
inspect restaurants, wells, and sewage systems. 
Others simply know that we provide flu shots, or 
childhood immunizations and school physicals, or 
just healthcare services for the un- or under-insured. 
We are sometimes viewed in a negative light as we 
take steps to protect you; however, we are most 
often seen as an integral and positive part of your 
community. We are so much more than all of our 
many programs, we are the sum of all our purposes. 
We are public health. You see, public health benefits 
every member of the Knox County community. So, 
even if you have never walked through our doors we 
have touched your life.

Michele Gabriel, MPH
Public Health Administrator

Message from the Administrator



Current Board 
of Health Members 
Carol Scotton, President 

Dan Harris, Vice President

Doug Gibb, Treasurer 

Kevin Satisky, Secretary 

DuRae Fletcher, Sr. 

Bruce Bobofchak, D.D.S.

Samuel Fox, M.D. 

Elvith Santoyou-McNaught

David Amor, County Board Liaison

Current Governance 
Board Members
Pastor Dan Siems, President

Angela Petersen, Vice President

Karen Lynch, Secretary

Sally Fischell, Treasurer

Komi S. Adamessi

Marty Andrews

Harlan Cook

Ronda Olin

Helen Ludwig

YOUR HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT BOARDS

For the past 25 years, we’ve had the honor to serve 
you and you’ve supported us in many ways. Knox 
County Board of Health held its inauguralmeeting 
on December 2, 1992. Since that time, you’ve seen 
big changes along with our steady commitment 
in building a healthier community for all. You’ve 
partnered with us in serving our community 
through: holding Teen Leadership Summits and 
Dental Days; supporting the HIV/AIDS taskforce, 
Emergency Preparedness, investigation of disease 
outbreaks and West Nile surveillance. We’ve 
worked together to assure safe food and drinking 
water; to advocate for safer streets and mental 
health services; and a Federally Qualified Health 
Center to provide comprehensive health services, 
behavioral health and dental care.

More importantly, as you see in our annual report, 
we have brought new resources into the county 
and have been good stewards of the tax dollars 

you have entrusted to us. We provide good jobs so 
that neighbors are helping neighbors. Our first 25 
years have made an impact on the community. You 
can be proud of what you made happen when you 
voted to create the Board of Health.

We’re grateful for the many people who have 
served on the Board of Health and have worked for 
us as staff since 1992, for the community members 
who have served on task forces and volunteered 
their time and knowledge, and for everyone in the 
community who have used our services. We hope 
you’ll join us in celebrating our first 25 years during 
Public Health week in April 2018. The board meets 
the 2nd Thursday of each month and you are 
invited to attend. If there are concerns regarding 
the public’s health, we want to hear from you.

Carol Scotton
Board President

Betty Nelson; Roger Myers; Carl Strauch, M.D.; Tommy West, M.D.; Gayle Keiser, County Board Liaison; 
H.J. Sandercock, D.D.S.; Leon Campbell; Jim Hankes; Sally Keener, County Board Liaison; Jacquelyne 
Turner; B. Lance Renfroe, D.D.S.; Jeffrey Krug, M.D.; Jeanne Harland; Marc Katchen, M.D.; Terry Bruner; 
Dale Parsons, County Board Liaison; Amy Mefford; Janet K. Occhi, County Board Liaison; Jeffery Koszcuk, 
D.O.; Linda Roberts, County Board Liaison; Frank Peppers, M.D.; Greg Bacon, County Board Liaison; 
Kim DeSutter; Cheryl Nache, County Board Liaison; Russ Nelson, County Board Liaison; Pam Davidson, 
County Board Liaison

Message from the President

Past Board of Health Members



THEN 
AND 
NOW 

Dr. Carl STRAUCH, M.D.

Doug GIBB, GRP-C., GCCA-C., GC-CSally KEENER



7KNOX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

WHAT WAS IT LIKE ON THE KNOX 
COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH WHEN YOU 
FIRST STARTED? 

Dr. Carl Strauch 
When the board first started back in 1993, we were 8 
individuals committed to starting a health department.  
We knew nothing, met in a conference room at 
Bridgeway at Hawthorne Center, and had, I believe, 
help from the state.  Betty Nelson was our first board 
chair and her leadership was invaluable.

Sally Keener 
It was a learning experience for me and the whole 
board. I joined the Board in 1994 as it was just getting 
off the ground. I learned all the Health Department 
could do in and for the people of Knox County.

Doug Gibb
When I first joined the Knox County Board of Health 
in 2001, we had just recently moved to the new facility 
housed at its current place. Although our mission 
statement was a bit different, we were and are always 
striving to have the vision of having healthy people in a 
health community. 

WHAT DO YOU THINK THE 
HEALTH DEPARTMENTS LARGEST 
ACCOMPLISHMENT(S) WERE WHEN YOU 
WERE ON THE BOARD? 

Dr. Carl Strauch 
This is an easy one-First, was hiring Greg Chance as 
our first administrator. He was the perfect choice and 
the department is, in many ways, his legacy.  Secondly, 
was getting the various programs started like WIC, 
restaurant inspection, well inspection and water safety.  
As I recall (and I could be wrong), the Henderson 
County Health Department helped us.   Finally was 
settling on a site for a new and permanent location for 
the department which we did.

Sally Keener 
I felt there were two big accomplishments during my 
tenure: Making sure the community knew the Health 
Department existed and all they had to offer, and 
building and moving into its own building.

Doug Gibb
During my tenure, many entities have taken place 
from certifications to programs that continue to aid 
in the development of healthier people. For example, 
Bioterrorism, West Nile and Smoke-Free policies just 
to name a few were implemented. Great successes 
have been accomplished especially with the Federally 
Qualified Health Center coming into existence. 

WHAT DO YOU THINK THE FUTURE OF 
PUBLIC HEALTH IS?
Dr. Carl Strauch 
I think public health has a bright future with more and 
more people falling through the health insurance cracks. 
Dental and health clinics and the basic department 
services will always be needed.   The public health 
system can do this in a cost-effective manner.

Sally Keener 
The future of public health depends on several moving 
parts working together:  Government agencies, private 
agencies and the community to name a few. Everyone 
should work together to make a healthier world.

Doug Gibb
Public Health continues to be a challenging issues 
for our community and the health department with 
uncertainties in health care. Whether or not one has 
private insurance, Medicare, Medicaid or no insurance, 
one is eligible to receive care at the Community Health 
Center. The hope is that Public Health will continue to 
provide services that are of need and of great value 
with the ever changing cost of health care; however, the 
Health Department keeps abreast of recent trends in 
medicine and services so our community can continue 
to have the resources available to them. 

A story told by 
our past and present 

Board of Health members



Wellness and Health 
Promotion Program Activities 
Number of Presentations Given   243
Number of Attendees     7135

Children served

Immunizations given -
children

Adults served

Immunizations given -
adults

2017

719

1712

901

1002

Chlamydia

Gonorrhea

Syphilis

2017

268

83

6

Food Protection
Our Food Protection Program strives to ensure 
food safety through: licensure of food facilities, 
inspections, and educational programs in our 
community. Health inspectors work with food 
vendors of all types to ensure the food you eat 
is safe.

Licensed Food establishments

Number of Routine
inspections conducted

Number of Re-inspections

Number of complaint 
investigations

2017

306
 
527

178

21

Potable Water Safety
The Potable Water Safety Program aims to 
reduce the risk of contracting a waterborne 
disease from community, non-community, and 
private water wells. The Knox County Health 
Department samples water for bacteria and 
nitrates, indicators of contamination.

Number of water well
permits issued

Number of water wells installed

Number of water wells inspected

Number of water wells sealed

2017

21

10

6

12

Onsite Wastewater
Disposal Program
Because so many toxic chemicals and 
pathogens are in sewage, it’s extremely 
important to ensure proper treatment of 
sewage. The Knox County Health Department 
works in conjunction with Private Sewage 
Contractors, Home Owners, and the Illinois 
Department of Public Health to protect the 
environment from contamination.

Sewage System Permits Issued

Sewage Systems Installed

Sewage Systems Inspected

Sewage Complaints
Received & Inspected

2017

43

44

45
 

1

Immunizations
We provide immunizations to infants, children, 
and adults at minimal or no cost to protect 
against vaccine-preventable diseases.

HIV Tests Performed

STD Tests Performed

2017

200

172

Number of presentations given

Number of Attendees

2017

243

7135

STD Reports

Lead Poisoning 
Prevention Program

Children Screening at KCHD

Children with Elevated 
Blood Lead Levels in KC

Lead Nurse Home Visits

Environmental 
Investigations Performed

Environmental Lead Cases 
Opened

Environmental Lead Cases Closed

2017

59
 
12

11

9

49

10

20
17 IN

 N
U

M
B

E
R

S



$21 Million 
Has received over $21 million dollars in federal and state grant funds

44,117
Administered over 44,117 childhood immunizations

8,164
Investigated over 8,164 reports of communicable disease

14,339

841
Issued over 841 water well construction permits

2,965
Analyzed over 2,965 water samples from private water wells

5

11,134
Conducted over 11,134 TB skin tests

94,700

4,691
Screened over 4,691 children for lead poisoning

STD Reports

Conducted over 14,339 routine food safety 
inspections and 5,023 follow-up surveys

Conducted more than 4,900 health 
education presentations to nearly 
94,700 people

Has facilitated five county-wide community health 
assessment and plan development projects

25
 Y

E
A

R
S 

O
F 

N
U

M
B

E
R

S



10

November 
1992

December 
1992

July 
1993

May 
1993

June 
1994

October 
1993

July

1994
July

1994

May

1995

May

1996

January

1995

January

1996

APPROVED! 
Citizen referendum 
passed that created the 
Knox County Health 
Department

FIRST BOARD 
MEETING HELD
Knox County Board of 
Health held its first board 
meeting

Health Department began 
annual administration of 
seasonal flu vaccine

Health Department 
began its childhood 
immunizations program

Health Department began 
providing safety-net dental 
services for Knox County

Health Department 
began Mosquito/Vector 
Control Programming

Health Department 
began providing 
WIC/FCM programs

Began Dental Sealant 
grant program in Knox 
County schools

Board of Health adopted 
its first Community Health 
Improvement Plan

Granted Local Health 
Protection dollars to 
aid in provision of core 
programs

WOMEN’S
ASSISTANCE 
Began providing 
assistance for women’s 
breast and cervical 
cancer programs

HIV/AIDS awareness, 
education and testing 
program



June 
1996

December 
1996

July 
1999

June 
2000

June 
2000

March 
2000

November

2001
April

2006

August

2009

January

2015

May

2007

June

2012

LET’S PLAY! 
Began providing school/
sports physicals through 
the Pediatric Primary 
Care grant

Department began efforts to 
address high teen pregnancy 
rates in Knox County

Radon awareness, 
education and testing 
program

MOVIN’ ON UP 
Knox County Board of 
Health moved Health 
Department to Fremont 
Street property

Knox County Health 
Department began 
activities to prevent H1N1

Began provision 
of mental health 
services through 
community health 
center

Health Department 
began Pandemic Flu 
Preparedness activities

Free Clinic opened to 
address access to health 
care concerns in Knox 
County

Tobacco Settlement 
dollars granted for Tobacco 
Use Prevention Programs

Health Department 
began Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness 
activities

Health Department 
expanded efforts to 
address STD rates in 
Knox County

330 AWARDED 
Awarded federal Section 
330 funding to establish 
Community Health Center

DECEMBER 2017 BOARD OF HEALTH CELEBRATED COMPLETION 
OF 25 YEARS OF SERVICE TO KNOX COUNTY



The Community Health Improvement Planning pro-
cess takes place every five years and is completed by 
the Knox County Health Department as a collaborative 
community-wide effort to improve the health status of 
residents in the Knox County community. The purpose 
of community health improvement planning is to im-
prove the capabilities of the local public health system 
to conduct community health assessments, complete 
strategic action plans, and apply results for improved 
health outcomes and public health policies for the com-
munity. Priority health concerns identified are selected 
because they are fundamental health challenges facing 
Knox County; which must be given priority in order for 
the overall health of the community to improve. These 
strategic health concerns have significant consequences 
and impact the overall health and well-being of the com-
munity if they are not addressed. 

Gone are the days when communicable diseases like 
Cholera, troubled us the most. Those diseases are still of 
concern today; but now, chronic diseases, such as diabe-
tes and obesity, are the big challenges. And these types 
of illnesses do not lend themselves to traditional, four-
walled approaches to health. So public health is continu-
ing to look outside those four walls to the public health 
system that is our community…to the social determinant 
of health that contribute so much to the overall health of 
the Knox County community. And with that comes en-
gaging non-health sectors because what drives public 
health problems is not solely within the purviews of the 
public health or health care systems. So the non-health 
sectors like schools, housing, planning, transportation, 
and others are important in addressing the health needs 
of this community. Health needs to be part of everything 
we do.

When the Knox County public health system is at its 
best, it is more than the Knox County Health Department 
inspecting restaurants, trying to get children immunized, 
preventing a disease outbreak, or ensuring access to 
dental care. It’s an entire system with many important 
players… from government agencies, schools, and health 
care providers to non-profit organizations and the people 
who live here themselves… doing their part to prevent 
illness, treat health problems, and promote good health. 

As Dr. Gloria Addo-Ayensu, Director of the Fairfax County 
Health Department, has said, “It’s a team sport.”

A special thank you to every organization and individual, 
from every sector of, Knox County who has contributed 
to the past 25-years. The Knox County Board of Health 
and Health Department appreciates you! We could not 
have done it without you and we are looking forward to 
the future and another 25 Years.

Community Health 
Improvement Planning

12

Public Health is a Team Sport



Family Health Program Activities 
Certified Clients      1491
Clients Who Attended Nutrition Education   1468
Clients Who Attended Breastfeeding Education  245
Community Clients Breastfeeding Visits/Contacts  175

Family Case Management Program 
Face to Face Visits      2602
Home Visits With At Risk Clients    14
New Clients Enrolled in Program     591

Breast & Cervical Cancer Program
IBCCP/Komen Nurse Contacts    110
New IBCCP Patients    5
IBCCP Exams      25
Mammograms      29

16

4508

110

95.71

55

27

KCHC has 1 full-time APN/Medical Director, 1 full-time APN, 2 full-time dentists, 
1 Psych APN, 3 full-time behavioral health counselors, 2 full-time hygienists, 

1 full-time RN Care Coordinator, 2 full-time LPN’s 1 part-time dentist, 2 part-time hygienists

4508 unduplicated patients 
were seen at the 

Knox Community Health Center

110 patients used someday 
appointments for medical services

95.71% of our patients 
say it is very easy to make 

an appointment.

55% of all KCHC patients are 
aged 19 and older and 5.94% 

are over the age of 64

27% of our patients 
participated in the 

sliding fee schedule

13KNOX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT



THEN 
AND 
NOW 
The oral health 
lifeline that created 
a decades worth 
of smiles

Dr. Matt ROZNY, D.M.D.

Dr. Lance RENFROE, D.D.S.Lori QUICK



15KNOX COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Health Center Value Statements
INTEGRITY

We act with a consistency of character 
and are accountable for our actions.

QUALITY
We achieve an exemplary level of service 
through individual efforts and teamwork.

COMPASSIONATE
We nurture a sense of family and community among our patients and ourselves.

RELIABLE
We provide forthcoming, impartial, and 

courteous care for every patient every time.

ATTAINABLE
We eliminate barriers that impede an individual’s 

ability to access medical and dental care.

KCHC Vision
A community without barriers to 
healthcare.

KCHC Mission
The mission of the Knox Community 
Health Center is to serve as a medical 
home providing comprehensive health 
care for all walks and stages of life.
We are dedicated to providing services 
which unite the ideals of prevention, 
wellness, and disease management; 
resulting in enhanced physical and 
mental well-being for the community 
members we serve.

WHAT DO YOU FEEL THE IMPACT OF 
DENTAL HEALTH HAS HAD OVERALL IN OUR 
COMMUNITY?

Dr. Matt Rozny
It has allowed many to see the dentist who otherwise 
would be unable to see one.

Lori Quick
I feel the Knox Community Dental Clinic has had a huge, 
positive impact of the Dental Health in our community. Over 
the years it has went back and forth. In earlier years there 
were several dentists in Knox County that took Medicaid 
and we only had a part time dentist, now I believe, we 
are the only ones who take Medicaid and have an income 
based sliding fee scale, but we have a much larger staff. I 
am very proud to have been with the program from the 
start and watch it grow into what it is today.

Dr. Renfroe
Since the health departments inception we have 
addressed children’s dental needs first. Having been 
active with public aid patients for about 7 years in private 
practice, I know that there is a tremendous need in Knox. 
It is a basic and unmet need. From a private practice 
perspective, the need can overwhelm a practioners 
practice. The need is best served within an institution like 
the Health Department. From the basic 2 rudimentary 
chairs on McClure Street to our state of the art clinic on 
Fremont Street, now I feel the need is being addressed.

HOW GREAT DO YOU FEEL THE NEED STILL IS 
IN OUR COMMUNITY? DO YOU FEEL WE HAVE 
MET THE ENTIRE NEED AS A COMMUNITY?

Dr. Matt Rozny
There is still a great need. Good dental care requires 
regular check-ups. We still see people every day with 
acute dental needs.

Lori Quick
We still have a need in the community, we try to get 
people in as quickly as possible, we have emergency 

appointment and an emergency list, there are always 
name on the list. There are transportation needs and 
specialized care needs that can’t be met at our facility.

Dr. Renfroe
Having been removed from the Health Department for 
a few years, I may not have the most current access 
to the numbers going through the Dental Clinic, but I 
know there is an increasing population of Knox County 
Members that qualify for most state aid programs. This 
creates a need that is hard to fully meet. The work of the 
Health Department and the Dental Clinic has to continue 
as service to Knox.

WHAT MORE CAN THE COMMUNITY DO?

Dr. Matt Rozny
Support the Community Health Center and tell people in 
need about us. Remember that everyone is welcome to 
come here for care.

Lori Quick
Spread the word, I am amazed after all these years, 
I have people come in every week and say wow, I 
didn’t know you offered so many services. The Knox 
Community Health Center services are for all people in 
the community, we have a great staff and a great facility. 

Dr. Renfroe
I think any and all of the preventive services available 
should be continued and provided regardless of 
the Knox population’s ability to pay or not. Dental 
Prophylaxis Topical Fluoride Treatments, Dental 
Sealants, and restoration of decayed teeth is 
paramount. It has been reported that hospital ER visit 
are down with tooth ache issues when a clinic like at 
the Health Department is in operation. School age 
children miss less school and are free of pain so when 
they are at school they can concentrate and learn. 
The work force misses less work when they do not 
have to deal with severe tooth pain from untreated 
disease. An active and well-staffed Dental Clinic like 
at the Knox County Health Department better serves 
the county by being there day after day, week after 
week and so on.



Federal & State Grants/
Foundation Awards  2,283,127.42
Service Fees   984,317.08
Tax Levy  603,357.54
Miscellaneous  83,743.61
Interest  18,470.02
Account Transfer 0.00

Total  3,973,015.67

Personnel (Grant Contingent) 2,205,348.88
Personnel  524,715.99
Grant Program Activities  413,771.68
Operating Expense  525,654.31
Building Construction  12,099.83
Account Transfer 0.00

Total  3,681,590.69

Education  58.9%
County  13.3%
Fire, Library, Sanitary, Misc.  12.1%
Cities & Villages  9.1%
Township  5.8%
Knox County Health Dept.  0.8%

2017 Revenue Summary for 
Knox County Health Department

2017 Expense Summary for 
Knox County Health Department

Distribution of Knox County 
2017 Property Taxes

KNOX COUNTY
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
1361 West Fremont Street
Galesburg, Illinois 61401

309-344-2224
www.knoxcountyhealth.org
www.facebook.com/KCHD92/

60%
57.5%24.8%

15.2%

58.9%

13.3%12.1%

.8% 5.8%

9.1%

14%

14%

11%

1%2.1% .5%

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 1 of 1Knox County 

Payment Account Activity for January 2018

02/01/2018

$ 13,199.02BEGINNING BALANCE01/01/2018

Name On Account AmountAccountDate

 500.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017068H01/02/2018

 170.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017068H01/02/2018

 500.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017069H01/02/2018

 170.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017069H01/02/2018

-350.00ABW Auctions1017022H01/10/2018

-250.00ABW Auctions1017022H01/10/2018

-70.00ABW Auctions1017022H01/10/2018

-350.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017068H01/10/2018

-250.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017068H01/10/2018

-70.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017068H01/10/2018

-350.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017069H01/10/2018

-250.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017069H01/10/2018

-70.00Rossell, Lindsay J1017069H01/10/2018

 191.17Luther, Michael A2013-045101/12/2018

-20.00Luther, Michael A2013-045101/15/2018

-704.55Luther, Michael A2013-045101/15/2018

-952.62Luther, Michael A2013-045101/15/2018

-70.00Luther, Michael A2013-045101/15/2018

ENDING BALANCE $ 10,973.0201/31/2018



Knox County

Individual Account Status for January 2018

02/01/2018 Page 1 of 3

REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS

Brooks Michael D Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(3/20/2018)

99-16-385-007

1691 BUSHMORE AVE., GALESBURG

2009-0580

2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016Tax Years: 

LAWNVIEW ADDN LOTS 185 & 186Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 12,920.64

 2,220.0006/10/2013 Down Payment

 500.0010/11/2013 Payment

-1,460.1004/02/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

-1,259.9004/02/2014 Knox County Collector

 718.9001/13/2015 Payment

 97.9802/06/2015 Payment

 175.7803/12/2015 Payment

 97.9804/13/2015 Payment

 23.9309/10/2015 Payment

 55.6211/07/2016 Payment

 171.5812/05/2016 Payment

 342.2505/15/2017 Payment

Total In Account $ 1,684.02$ 8,516.62AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

Downard Randy Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(2/20/2018)

01-16-353-002

MAIN ST., RIO

2013-0001

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016Tax Years: 

LOT 3 BLK 11. VILLAGE OF RIOLegal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 2,878.49

 533.0008/16/2017 Down Payment

 355.0009/15/2017 Payment

 355.0010/16/2017 Payment

 355.0011/27/2017 Payment

Total In Account $ 1,598.00$ 1,280.49AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

Dusek Curt Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(1/20/2018)

11-03-276-006

CHERRYWOOD CT.

2012-0100

2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016Tax Years: 

WINDEMERE SUB DIVISION LOT 111Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 18,436.16

 2,680.0007/22/2016 Down Payment

 2,017.0002/02/2017 Payment

 294.0006/12/2017 Payment

 1,000.0009/27/2017 Payment

 1,000.0009/27/2017 Payment

 700.0009/27/2017 Payment

Total In Account $ 7,691.00$ 10,745.16AMOUNT STILL DUE ->



Knox County

Individual Account Status for January 2018

02/01/2018 Page 2 of 3

Luther Michael A Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(1/20/2018)

99-15-378-007

990 S. ACADEMY ST., GALESBURG

2013-0451

2013, 2014, 2015Tax Years: 

E 99 FT LOT 4 BLK 105.Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 1,677.17

 350.0007/05/2017 Down Payment

 233.0007/20/2017 Payment

 195.0008/15/2017 Payment

 194.0009/13/2017 Payment

 200.0010/16/2017 Payment

 192.0011/27/2017 Payment

 192.0012/13/2017 Payment

 191.1701/12/2018 Payment

-20.0001/15/2018 Knox County Clerk

-704.5501/15/2018 Knox County Tax Agent

-952.6201/15/2018 Knox County Collector

-70.0001/15/2018 Michael A Luther

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

============== END OF REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS ==============



Knox County

Individual Account Status for January 2018

02/01/2018 Page 3 of 3

SALE ACCOUNTS

ABW Auctions Account: 

Parcel: Prop Addr:

(2/20/2018)

13-33-382-025 100 N. MAIN ST.

ABINGDON, IL 61410

1017022H

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 670.00

 670.0012/18/2017 Payment

-350.0001/10/2018 Knox County Tax Agent

-250.0001/10/2018 Knox County Collector

-70.0001/10/2018 Knox County Recorder

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

Rossell Lindsay J Account: 

Parcel: Prop Addr:

(3/20/2018)

99-16-385-012 1026 LYMAN ST.

GALESBURG, IL 61401

1017068H

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 670.00

 500.0001/02/2018 Payment

 170.0001/02/2018 Payment

-350.0001/10/2018 Knox County Tax Agent

-250.0001/10/2018 Knox County Collector

-70.0001/10/2018 Knox County Recorder

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

Rossell Lindsay J Account: 

Parcel: Prop Addr:

(3/20/2018)

99-16-385-013 1046 LYMAN ST.

GALESBURG, IL 61401

1017069H

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 670.00

 500.0001/02/2018 Payment

 170.0001/02/2018 Payment

-350.0001/10/2018 Knox County Tax Agent

-250.0001/10/2018 Knox County Collector

-70.0001/10/2018 Knox County Recorder

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

================= END OF SALE ACCOUNTS =================

TOTAL PAID FOR ALL ACCOUNTS $10,973.02 























 
County of Knox 
Galesburg, Illinois   
02/29/2018 
   
Dear Prospective Proposer,   
The County of Knox is accepting proposals to hire a qualified firm to provide consulting services to conduct 
a comprehensive classification and compensation study for bargaining and non‐bargaining positions; and to 
provide a Performance Management System to support the compensation plan.   
 
RFP Title: Classification & Compensation Study   
 
Due Date: April 30, 2018 
   
Please note the following requirements:   
 
� Signed Proposal Form   

� Completed Disclosure of Beneficiaries Form   

� Certificate of Insurance (required prior to award)   

� Substance Abuse Prevention Form   
 
   
If you need additional information please feel free to contact me.   
 
Sincerely,   
 
 
 
 
Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk   
serickson@co.knox.il.us   
(309) 345‐3815   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   



   
   

 
 
 
 

CLASSIFCATION & COMPENSATION STUDY 
County of Knox, State of Illinois 

 
   
   
DUE DATE: April 30, 2018   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
   
   
   
   
   
 
   
   



   
County of Knox 

Request for Proposals 
General Information 

   
1.01 Definition: A Request for Proposal (RFP) is a method of procurement permitting discussions with 
responsible proposers and revisions to proposals prior to award of a contract. Proposals will be opened and 
evaluated in private. Award will be based on the criteria set forth herein.   
   
1.02  Receipt and Handling of Proposals: Proposals shall be opened in private by the   
Evaluation Committee to avoid disclosure of contents to competing proposers.   
   
1.03    Addenda: Addenda are written instruments issued by the County of Knox prior to the date for 
receipt of proposals which modify or interpret the RFP by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections.   
   
Prior to the receipt of proposals, addenda will be mailed or faxed to all who are known to have received a 
complete Request for Proposals.   
   
After receipt of proposals, addenda shall be distributed only to proposers who submitted proposals; and 
those proposers shall be permitted to submit new proposals or to amend those submitted.   
   
Each proposer shall ascertain prior to submitting a proposal that all addenda issued have been received 
and, by submission of a proposal, such act shall be taken to mean that such proposers have received all 
addenda and that the proposer is familiar with the terms thereof and understands fully the contents of the 
addenda.   
   
1.04  Discussion of Proposals: The Evaluation Committee may conduct discussions with any proposer 
who submits an acceptable proposal. Proposers shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to 
any opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals. During the course of such discussions, the 
Evaluation Committee shall not disclose any information derived from one proposal to another proposer.   
   
During the initial discussion, the proposer shall be prepared to give an oral presentation covering the 
following topics:   
   
a. The specific services to be provided.   
b. Qualifications of the proposer, including work on similar projects, experience of personnel, etc.   

c. The working relationship to be established between the County of Knox and the proposer including, but 
not limited to, what each party should expect from the other.   

d. Implementation schedule for the project.   

e. A review of the costs associated with this project.   
 
   
   
   



1.05  Evaluation Criteria:   
              1.05.01 ‐ Ability of the Proposer to comply with the Requirements of the contract.   
              1.05.02 ‐ The quality level of the proposed system.   
              1.05.03 ‐ The number and scope of conditions attached to the offer.   
              1.05.04 ‐ The price of the services.   
              1.05.05 ‐ Such other information that may be secured by the County of Knox, which may have a 
bearing on the decision to make the award.   
   
1.06  Negotiations: The County of Knox reserves the right to negotiate specifications, terms, and 
conditions which may be necessary or appropriate to the accomplishment of the purpose of the RFP. The 
County may require the entire proposal be made an integral part of the resulting contract. This implies that 
all responses, supplemental information, and other submissions provided by the proposer during 
discussions or negotiations will be held by the County of Knox as contractually binding on the successful 
proposer.   
   
1.07  Confidentiality: The Knox County Board shall examine the proposals to determine the validity of 
any written requests for nondisclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary data identified. After award 
of the contract, all responses, documents, and materials submitted by the proposer pertaining to this RFP 
will be public information and will be made available for inspection, unless otherwise determined by the 
Knox County Board. All data, documentation, and innovations developed as a result of these contractual 
services shall become the property of the Knox County Board.    Based upon the public nature of these 
RFPs, a proposer must inform the Knox County Clerk in writing of the exact materials in the offer which 
cannot be made a part of the public record in accordance with the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. 



County of Knox   
Classification & Compensation Study   
   
A. Purpose 
 

To meet their strategic objective to attract and retain a highly talented and motivated workforce, the 
County of Knox seeks to hire a qualified firm to provide consulting services to conduct a comprehensive 
classification and compensation study for non‐bargaining positions, and to provide a performance 
management system to support the compensation plan.   

 

B. Overview: County Profile   
   
Knox County is a county in the U.S. state of Illinois.    According to the 2010 census, it had a population of 
52,919.    Its county seat is Galesburg.    Knox County comprises the Galesburg, IL Micropolitan Statistical 
area.    The Knox County Board consists of 15 members elected from the 5 County Board Districts in the 
County.    The business of the County Board is conducted through the committee system.    The County 
Board members are elected to serve four year terms with a rotating order of terms that is established 
every 10 years at the Organizational meeting after the census.    All are elected for four year terms.   
There are currently eighteen (18) departments within the County of Knox.    There are approximately 419 
employees with 349 full time and 70 part time employees.   
 
C. Overview: Staffing and Compensation   

   

1. Organizational Change‐ Job Responsibilities   
 

D. Overview: County Board Direction 
 
The County wants any compensation study to maintain a focus on comparison to the private sector and 
other comparable governmental entities as the basis for salary increases.    The County is also concerned 
about the value of a total benefit package as a consideration in salary determination.    Variances for cost 
of living in comparison areas should be taken into account and reflected appropriately.   
 
E. Scope of Proposal 
 

Conduct a classification and compensation system review of the County’s’ full‐time and part‐ time union 
and non‐union positions. The study will provide comprehensive recommendations for a modern 'best 
practice' classification and compensation system that supports the County’s’ mission and strategic 
objectives.   

 

F. Services to be Provided by Task 
 
The proposal to conduct a comprehensive classification and compensation study shall fully describe the 
proposed methodology and include the following services:   
   
a. Review and assess the County’s’ current compensation and benefit plan; conduct a comprehensive 
compensation benefits comparability study; and recommend revisions to the plan. 
 
 
 
 



b. Ensure the County’s’ compensation and benefit plan revision recommendations reflect internal equity 
and external equity as compared with compensation for similar work in comparable County’s and in the 
private sector.   
 
c. Alternative recommendations demonstrating the methodology the County should use to implement any 
new classification and compensation system, including the placement of all employees within the 
classification and compensation system, and the advantages, disadvantages, and financial impact of each 
alternative.   
 
d. Communications plan for employees, supervisors and managers in order for the consultant to provide 
information and receive feedback throughout each step of the process, including meetings with 
employees, administrative staff, and the Evaluation Committee.   
 
e. Provide a manual of instructions, training materials, and training to the designated County Staff to 
administer the proposed classification and compensation system, indicating the staffing and technology 
required, and the availability of software for that purpose.   
   
G. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS   
   
Consultant shall have a proven track record of conducting compensation and classification studies for 
similar organizations. Consultant shall be of sufficient size and with sufficient staffing to provide contracted 
services in a timely manner.   
   
H. DELIVERABLES   
 
Consultant shall provide a comprehensive report that includes the classification and pay plan, including all 
class and job specifications, and describes the study methodology, process, findings and recommendations, 
and includes all the materials described in Section F ‐ "Services to be provided".   
 
   
I. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE   
 
Consultant should provide a proposed detailed project schedule from start to finish. Timely execution of 
the study is an important consideration.   
   
J. PROPOSAL SELECTION   
   
An Evaluation Committee will be selected to review proposals. The County reserves the right to select the 
Proposer, who represents the best value, and to accept or reject any proposal submitted in response to 
this solicitation. The County Evaluation Committee will act in what they consider to be the best interest of 
the County and their residents.   
   
Price shall not be the sole determining factor for selection, as indicated in the following section.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



K. EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS   
   
a. EVALUATION METHOD AND CRITERIA   
 
The Evaluation Committee will be responsible for selecting the most qualified firm and then negotiating a 
contract. Proposals will be reviewed and short‐listed. Those firms short‐listed may be invited to make a 
presentation.   
   
After presentations, firms will be assigned a final score, with the highest‐ranked firm moving forward to the 
negotiation phase. Upon successful negotiation, a recommendation for award will be considered by a 
committee of the County Board. No work on this project shall proceed without written authorization from 
this County Board.   
   
The County reserves the right to enter into contract negotiations with the selected Proposer. If the County 
and the selected Proposer cannot negotiate a successful contract, the County may terminate such 
negotiations and begin negotiations with the next selected Proposer. No Proposer shall have any rights 
against the County arising from such negotiations.   
   
The County’s’ evaluation criteria may include, but shall not be limited to, the following:   
a. Compliance with Request for Proposals [Mandatory). This refers to the adherence to all conditions and 
requirements of the Request for Proposals.   

b. Quality of Response, Technical Approach, and Work Plan.   
1. Clearly demonstrated understanding of the scope, objectives and work to be performed.   

2. Completeness and reasonableness of the Proposer's plan/proposal for accomplishing the goals, 
objectives and tasks.   

3. Level of knowledge and creativity and demonstrated by the Proposer's proposed methodologies 
for meeting the requirements of this proposal.   

4. Ability to respond to the County’s’ needs as set forth in the RFP.   
c. Qualifications and Experience of the Firm/Project Staff.     

Proposer's capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, 
perseverance, experience, integrity, and reliability which will assure good faith performance, as well as 
satisfactory reference verification. This criteria includes:   

1. The experience of the firm   

2. Personnel to be assigned to the project, and their education, capabilities, qualifications and 
experience with similar projects   

3. Reference information gathered from other entities regarding the past experience of the firm 

4. Other areas addressed in the Statement of Work herein.   
 
d. Schedule. This refers to the proposed detailed project schedule and the Proposer's ability to meet the 
County’s overall performance schedule.   
 
e. Costs (Price). This refers to the proposed contract fee and reimbursement expense budget. (Please note 
that price is only one factor for consideration of award).   

1. The Proposer shall propose a not‐to‐exceed amount for complete execution of this project as 
detailed in the Specifications or Statement of Work herein.   
2. If proposing costs, which may include alternate programs or services not covered in the base bid 
pricing, the Proposer, when offering such alternative services must provide a detailed explanation 
of additional optional services to be offered.   

 
   
 



b. ACCEPTABILITY OF PROPOSALS   
 
The Offer shall be evaluated solely in accordance with the criteria set forth herein. The proposals shall be 
categorized as follows:   

1. Acceptable.   
2. Potentially Acceptable; i.e., reasonably susceptible to being made acceptable.     

OR   
3. Unacceptable.   

 
c. AWARD OF AGREEMENT   
 
Award shall be made by the County Board to the responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined to be 
the most advantageous to the County, taking into consideration price and the evaluation criteria set forth 
herein. The County Board reserves the right to accept the Proposal as a whole, or any component thereof, 
if it appears to be in the best interest of the County.   
 
d. WEIGHTED CRITERIA   
   
Points will be assigned to each proposal based on the following weighted criteria:   
   
CRITERIA                                                                                                                                                             
   
1. Compliance with Request for Proposal (Mandatory)                          N/A     

2. Quality of Response, Technical Approach & Work Plan                    40 points   

3. Qualifications of the Firm/Project Staff, including references      25 points   

4. Schedule                                                                                              20 points   

5. Costs (price)                                                                                          15 points   
 
   
These weighted criteria are provided to assist Proposers in the allocation of their time and efforts during 
the proposal preparation process. The criteria also guide the Evaluation Committee during the short‐listing 
and final ranking of Proposers by establishing a general framework for those deliberations.   
   
Note: The Costs (Price) component will be scored by awarding the maximum number of points to the 
lowest cost responsive proposal, and calculating a ratio between the lowest price and all other prices:   
Example:                          Proposal A Price = $100   
                                                Proposal B Price = $120   
                                                Proposal C Price = $150   
Points:   
                                                Proposal A: (Lowest ‐Maximum Points) = 15 points   
                                                Proposal B: $1001$120 = .83 x 15 points = 12.5 points   
                                                Proposal C: $1001$150 = .66 x 15 points = 9.9 points 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



L. DISCUSSIONS & PRESENTATIONS   
 
   
The short‐listed Proposers may be requested to make presentations to the Committee. The County may 
require additional information after evaluation of the submittals, and Proposers agree to furnish such 
information upon the County’s request.   
The recommended Proposer will also be required to make a presentation to the County Board upon 
completion of the study. More detailed information will be provided to the recommended Proposer.   
   
M. RIGHT TO REJECT PROPOSALS   
   
Proposals will be considered incomplete and may be rejected if they show serious omissions, alterations in 
form, additions not called for, conditions, unauthorized alterations, or irregularities of any kind. The County 
reserve the right to reject any Proposal if the County believes that it would not be in its best interest to 
make an award to a particular Proposer, either because the Proposal is not responsive, the Proposer is 
unqualified, of doubtful financial ability, or fails to meet any other pertinent criteria established by the 
County within the scope of this solicitation.   
 
N. PROPOSAL COPIES   
 
Return one (1) original and four (4) copies of your Technical Proposal, and one (1) original and four (4) 
copies of your Cost/Price Proposal in a separate, sealed envelope, marked with your firm's name and     
including: "RFP, CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY", to the   
 

Hon. Scott Erickson 
Knox County Clerk 
ATTN: Salary RFP 

200 South Cherry Street 
Galesburg, IL 61401. 

 
Any addenda become part of this Request for Proposal and the resulting agreement. The Proposal Form 
included herein should be signed by an authorized company representative, dated and returned with the 
Proposal.   
     
   
O. SCHEDULE OF EVENTS   
   
The schedule of events related to this Request for Proposal: 
   
Request for Proposal Advertised:      Week of March 5, 2018                               
   
Deadline for Written Questions:   April 9, 2018                                                   
   
Deadline for Receipt of Proposals:    April 30, 2018 at 10:00AM Central Time                                   
   
Anticipated Award by Board:      May 23, 2018 
     
   
   
   
 



  SEPARATE SEALED ENVELOPE   
   
The Cost/Price Proposal shall be submitted in a separate, sealed envelope, separate from but included 
with, the Technical Proposal. Failure to submit a complete Technical and Cost/Price Proposal may result in 
disqualification of the Proposal.   
   
Questions regarding this proposal should be submitted in writing five days prior to the close date.       
Questions should be emailed to serickson@co.knox.il.us. A response to your question(s) will be answered 
in the form of an addendum. Only those communications that are issued in writing from the County may 
be considered as a duly authorized expression.   
   
Contact with personnel of the County of Knox other than the County Clerk or Treasurer regarding their 
Request for Proposal may be grounds for elimination from the selection process.   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   



Please Submit the Following Pages With 
Your Proposal Documents:  
  
One Copy Marked “Original”  
&  
One Copy  
  
  
  
  
  



RFP Submittal Form  
Classification and Compensation Study  
Company Name:  
Contact Person:   
Address:  
City, State, Zip:   
TX: (      )  
FX: (    )  
  
E-Mail Address Required:  
  
The proposer acknowledges the receipt of the addenda(s) as follows:  
  
Addendum(s):____________________________________________  
  
The proposer also agrees that they have not been suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded by the State and or  
Federal government.___________________________(initial)  
  
  
3. Nature of Applicant: (Please check one)  
 
a.  Natural Person:  ___  
b.        Corporation:  ___  
c.        Land Trust/Trustee: ___  
d.        Trust/Trustee:  ___  
e.        Partnership:  ___  
f.   Joint Venture:  ___  
  
4. If applicant is an entity other than described in Section 3, briefly state the nature and characteristics of the applicant: 
___________________________________________________________________________  
 
  
5. If in your answer to Section 3 you have checked Box b, c, d, or e, identify by name and address each person or entity 
who is a 7.5 percent shareholder in the case of a corporation, a beneficiary in the case of a trust or land trust, a joint 
venture in the case of a joint venture, or who otherwise has a proprietary interest, interest in profits and losses, or right 
to control such entity.  
 
  
              Name                                                   Address                                             
Interest  
A.___________________________________________________________  
B.___________________________________________________________  
C.___________________________________________________________  
D.___________________________________________________________  
  
  
  
6. Name, address, and capacity of person making this disclosure on behalf of the applicant  
 
_______________________________________________________________________  
  
Important Note: In the event your answer to Section 5 identifies entities other than a natural person, additional 
disclosures are required for each such entity.  
 
 
 
 
  



I, being duly sworn under oath, depose and state that I am the person making this disclosure on behalf of the applicant, 
that I am duly authorized to make this disclosure, that I have read the above and foregoing Disclosure of Beneficiaries, 
and that the statements contained therein are true in both substance and fact,  
  
By,_________________________________________________ (Authorized Signature and Title)  
  
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ________ day of ____________________, 2018  
  
  
Notary Public_____________________________________  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  



Contractors Drug Free Work Place Certification  
  
Pursuant to Chapter 30, Section 580/1 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (30 ILCS 580/1) Et. Seq. 
entitled "Drug Free Workplace Act", the undersigned contractor hereby certifies to the contracting 
agency that it will provide a drug-free workplace by:  
  
(a) Publishing a statement:  
  
(1) Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of 
a controlled substance, including cannabis, is prohibited in the grantees of contractor's workplace.  
  
(2) Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.  
  
(3) Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such contract or grant, the employee 
will:  
  
(A) Abide by the terms of the statement; and  
  
(8) Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the 
workplace no later than 5 days after such conviction.  
  
(b) Establishing a drug free awareness program to inform employees about: (1) the dangers of drug 
abuse in the workplace;  
(2) The grantee's or contractor's policy of maintaining drug free workplace;  
  
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee   assistance program; and  
  
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations.  
  
(c) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by subsection (a) to each employee 
engaged in the performance of the contract or grant and to post the statement in a prominent place in the 
workplace.  
  
(d) Notifying the contracting agency within 10 days after receiving notice under part (B) of paragraph 
(3) of subsection (a) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  
  
(e) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug assistance or 
rehabilitation  program by  any employee who is so convicted, as required by Section 5 (30 ILCS 
580/5) of the Act.  
  
(f) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling treatment, and 
rehabilitation is required and indicating that a trained referral team is in place. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through implementation of 
this Section.  
  
  
  
Failure to abide by this certification shall subject the contractor to the penalties provided in Section 6 
(30 ILCS 580/6) of the Act.  
  
  
CONTRACTOR_____________________________________  
  
ATTEST___________________________________________  
  
Date______________  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  























































ASSESSMENT / ZONING REPORT / GIS 

February 20, 2018 

 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OFFICE 

       

      The Board of Review Hearings are complete, and B of R Final Assessment Notices have 

been mailed.  All reports have been balanced and I am working on finalizing the 2017 Final 

Abstract to send to the Dept. of Revenue.  Once I have that completed, I will roll into our new 

year and we will get started on our 2018 assessment year.  We are ahead of last years 

schedule. 

      I did hold the Annual Township Assessors Meeting on Monday, February 12th.  This is an 

annual meeting required by IL State Statutes for me to hold to direct the Township Assessors 

in uniform assessments throughout the County. 

 

 

ZONING 

 

      The Zoning Board of Appeals held one hearing on February 7th.  It was for a setback 

variance and was approved by a 4-0 vote by the ZBA.  (One member was absent.)  Setback 

variances do not require any further approval by the County Board. 

      We had our January Adjudication Hearing on the 26th.  As mentioned in last month’s 

report, we only had one case……the same one we have been dealing with for almost 2 years.  

After 23 months, the case was finally terminated…..meaning, he finally came into 

compliance.  We will continue to watch the property and if he starts to bring in more cars or 

salvage we will start a new violation. 

      The Zoning Office issued 6 building permits for the month of January 2018 compared to 4 

building permits for the month of January 2017.     

 

 

GIS 

         Bill’s report is enclosed. 

 

 

                  Respectfully submitted, 

        Chris Gray, CIAO/CCO 

        Chief County Assessment Officer 

        Zoning Admin./GIS Dept. Supv. 



 

GIS Report    2/20/2018 

 

The FAA exam for sUAC (small Unmanned Aircraft System) has been successfully 

completed.  I now have my temporary license, waiting for them to mail out the permanent (2 

years) one.  The drone project is underway.  

I travelled to WIU and inspected and flew some drones that they have.  Prior to my trip I 

was leaning towards purchasing a more expensive drone that had a camera with a larger sensor 

on it.  While at WIU they walked me through the flight planning and the image processing and 

the software that they use to do it.  They also provided me with some raw imagery that they had 

acquired, one set from the smaller sensor and one from the larger.  After examining the imagery 

and processing it here I was very impressed with the quality of both sensors. 

After a lot of back and forth I decided to purchase a smaller, less expensive, drone with 

the smaller sensor.  We purchased a DJI Mavic Pro Platinum drone.  It is extremely portable and 

will be a good drone to learn on.  It is now registered with the FAA and the application for 

insurance has been sent in.  Once the snow melts I will start flying it, in an open field, and start 

testing it to prepare for the first project. 

The Highway department has a reconstruction project on 3 miles of Highway 4 this year 

and they have requested pre and post construction imagery.  I have already laid out the flight 

with planning software, Drone Deploy, and am anxious to get started.  After some flight time we 

will also test the drone for bridge inspections.  

Some additional purchases will be necessary.  I will try out the free versions of the 

various processing software (usually a 30 day trial) before purchasing. Also the android tablet we 

have is not supported and the iPad mini 4 is recommended. 

In other matters I will be replying to the Census that we have no changes (annexations) to 

report for their annual BAS program.  JULIE has made their annual request for data and I will 

get that sent out.  

 

Sincerely,   
 
Bill Lotz 































IT Ad HOC Committee Meeting 

(1/22/2018) 
All members except Trisha Hurst were present 

  (Start 11:00 a.m. | End 11:35 a.m.) 

 

AGENDA: 

1. IT OFFICE SPACE  
2. RFP FOR TECHNOLOGY PURCHASES 

 

IT OFFICE SPACE 

 IT Dept presented 3 different options for relocating, along with pros and cons for each of 
the different options 

 Member Erickson stated that Chairwoman Davidson will start a conversation with the  
Veteran’s Assistance about relocating their office into another space (if they so shoose), 
so IT could relocate their office to their current space inside the annex building 

  This action will be brought up in the building committee by Member Bondi 

RFP FOR TECHNOLOGY PURCHASES 

 RFP’s consist of servers, server storage, Nursing Home Wireless, Ipads 

 Member Rowe stated that the Nursing Home’s rack will still have to be approved before 
it can be purchased. 

 Member Bondi stated he will run it through the Nursing Home committee 

 Nursing Home’s Wireless system will have to go out to bid  

 Member Bondi stated he would put this on his agenda for the Nursing Home Committee 

 Storage for the servers will have to go through the finance committee 

 There have reportedly been numerous issues with the county board members Ipads. 
Member Erickson and Member Bondi are taking the issue to finance meeting this month 
to purchase new Ipads. Will be bringing quotes from multiple places to the meeting. 
 

 























































































































































































KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN   JANE SMITH 

KASI TERPENING    MELANIE RICE 
NICOLE BYERLY 

 

   
 

 

Knox County Board and Committee 
Meetings Calendar 

 
February 2018 

 
The following is a list of the meetings of the standing Committees for the Knox County 
Board for the above referenced month. 
 
Building Committee 
 February 13, 2018 at the Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:30PM 
 
Sheriff-Jail-Courthouse-Mary Davis Home-Animal Control-Nursing Home Committee  

February 19, 2018 at the Annex conference room. Starting at 6:30 PM 
 
Highway-Landfill-Assessor-Zoning-GIS-Recorder Committee 

February 20 2018 at the Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 
Finance-Insurance-Treasurer-Judicial-Clerk Committee 

February 21, 2018 at the Annex conference room.  Starting at 6:30 PM. 
 
Knox County Board Meeting – Regular Meeting 

February 27, 2018 at the Galesburg City Hall.  Starting at 6:00 PM 
 
Special Board Meeting – February 6, 2018 at Annex conference room.  Starting at 
6:00PM (Closed Session for Pending Litigation). 

Outside Committees 
Personnel Committee 
 February 21, 2018 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 5:30PM 
 
Knox County Board of Health 
 February 15, 2018 at the Knox County Health Department. 
 
Knox County Veterans Assistance Commission Meeting. 

February 12, 2018 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:00 PM. 
  
IT Department Advisory Meeting. 

February 12, 2018 at the County Clerk Office. Starting at 11:00AM. 


	Board Packet Cover - January 2018
	Board Call - February 2018
	Agenda - February 2018
	Board Minutes - January 2018
	Closed Board Minutes - January 2018
	Action Item - Health Department Annual Report 2018 22218
	Action Item - Appointments Elba Salem FPD
	Action Item - Resolution on Special Prosecutor and Litigation
	Finance Committee Report - February 2018
	Feb 2018 Finance Agenda00590620180219150413
	Jan 2018 Finance Minutes00590520180219150118
	2017 Kill Claims payable 201800590720180219152357
	Feb 2018 Deeds of Conveyance00590320180219145938
	WIRC Paint Recycling Invoice00590420180219150011
	Prairie Hills 2018 dues00590220180219145811

	Financial Reports - February 2018
	Jan 2018 Financials00590020180219143318

	Trustee Report - February 2018
	Action Item - Animal Kill Claims 2017
	Action Item - Deeds of Conveyance - February 2018
	Action Item - Paint and Recycle Program WIRC 2018
	Action Item - Prairie Hills Invoice
	Action Item - IPad Replacement Bids
	Action Item - Bid and Back IT Storage Server
	Action Item - Compensation Study RFP
	Action Item - Otto Baum Pay Request - Final
	Action Item - Hein Invoice - February 2018
	Action Item - Klingner Invoice - February 2018
	Action Item - MSI Courthouse Heat
	Sheriff Committee Minutes - February 2018
	Sheriff Committee Closed Minutes - February 2018
	Sheriff Department Report - February 2018
	Mary Davis Home Report - February 2018
	Nursing Home Report - February 2018
	Action Item - NH Wireless Project
	Assessment Office Report - February 2018
	GIS Report - February 2018
	Highway Department Report - February 2018
	IT Ad HOC_Minutes - February 2018
	Action Item - Summary Sheets - February 2018
	Meeting Calendar - February 2018

	Button1: 
	Return to agenda: 


